ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 30, 2005
8:37 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriaul t

Senator Hollis French

Senat or Gretchen Quess

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 106

"An Act relating to sale, possession, and delivery of certain
substances and precursors used in the unlawful manufacture of
net hanphet am ne. "

HEARD AND HELD

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
SELECT COW TTEE ON LEQG SLATIVE ETHI CS - Marianne Stillner

CONFI RVATI ON RESCI NDED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 106

SHORT TI TLE:. SALE OF METHAMPHETAM NE AND PRECURSORS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GUESS

02/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 05 (S) JUD, FIN

03/ 29/ 05 (S) JUD AT 10:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 29/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 29/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 30/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Sergeant Tinothy Birt

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2005



D vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

3700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 106

Ms. G ndy Bueller, Pharnaci st

Al aska Board of Pharnaci sts

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 106

Ms. Marl ena Adans
Mat - Su Val |l ey, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 106

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:37:08 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Gene Therriault, Getchen CGuess
and Chair Ral ph Seeki ns.

Confirmati on Hearing — Sel ect Committee on Legislative Ethics

CHAIR SEEKINS announced the need to rescind the previous
recommendation for Ms. Marianne Stillner to the Select Commttee
on Legislative Ethics due to the fact her term had not expired.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to rescind the action of forwarding Ms.
Marianne Stillner’s name. Hearing no objections, the notion
carried.

8:42:16 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS offered to draft a letter for the Legislative
Ethics Commttee advising them of future procedural steps when
faced with conflicting statute interpretation.

SENATOR FRENCH agreed and stated the action does not reflect
upon Ms. Still ner.

SB 106- SALE OF METHAMPHETAM NE AND PRECURSORS

8.45: 13 AM

SERGEANT TIMOTHY BIRT, Alaska State Troopers, testified in
support of SB 106. Methanphetamine (neth) contributes many
dangers to the community, although chem cals used to make neth
have legitimate retail uses. Byproducts of conbining the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2005



chemcals are toxic, flammable, explosive, and create toxic
residues that contamnate dwellings. There are 150 recipes for
manuf acturing nmeth, which are easily obtainable online.

8:47.:54 AM

One hundred percent of the neth manufactured in Alaska is
manuf actured from diverted Pseudo Ephedrine (diverted from
legitimate use to an illegal drug).

SENATOR GUESS asked Sgt. Birt to comment on a suggested limt
for legitinmate personal use.

SERGEANT BIRT said the Alaska State Troopers would prefer a
limt of six grams. The |ower threshold would have nore of a
significant inpact. The State of Oegon has a nine-gram
threshold and report they haven’t seen much of an inpact on neth
| abs. The State of lowa recently went to a seven and a half
t hreshol d.

8:49: 44 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked Sgt. Birt the amount of neth that can be
made out of nine grans of Pseudo ephedri ne.

SERGEANT BI RT answered from nine grans of Pseudo ephedrine, siXx
and three quarters grans of nmeth can be derived.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the ampunt an addi ct doses.

SERGEANT BIRT responded an addict divides one gram into ten
portions and one portion is equal to one dose.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the street price of one gram of neth.
SERGEANT BI RT answered $150 dol | ars.

8:51: 30 AM

SENATOR FRENCH comment ed ni ne grans of Pseudo ephedrine converts
to approximately $1,000 dollars worth of neth. He said the
commttee was concerned wth protection of people who
legitimately use the product. He asked Sgt. Birt to explain how
an officer would identify a nmeth | ab.

SERGEANT BI RT advised officers normally rely upon nore than one
i ndi cator. Exceptional anobunts of Pseudo ephedrine packages and
certain types of solvents, along with unusual anmounts of |ye and
sul furic acids would be an indicator.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2005



8:54:13 AM

Various cooking itens such as hotplates and Pyrex dishes wth
resi dues, fans, hoses, tubing, gas generators all indicate
evi dence of manufacturi ng.

SENATOR FRENCH commented Oregon has a savings clause in its neth
statutes, which say the |law doesn’'t apply to soneone whose use
is consistent with typical household use. He wondered whether
Al aska shoul d have a simlar savings cl ause.

SERGEANT BI RT agreed that would be a good idea.

8:56:40 AM

M5. CINDY BUELLER, pharmacist, representing the Al aska State
Board of Pharmacy testified in support of SB 106. The board
encourages limting the sale of Pseudo ephedrine for the purpose

of stopping the production of nethanphetamnes. It is a
relatively small inconvenience to the public.
8:.59: 57 AM

M5. BUELLER stated pharmacists do not want to lock up nulti-
i ngredi ent products because neth cookers do not use those
products to make neth.

9:01: 22 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked whether it is inpossible to nake neth out
of multi-ingredient products.

M5. BUELLER answered Washington state |egislation suggests it
woul d be a substantial hurdle.

SERGEANT BI RT commented neth cookers prefer to use single Pseudo
ephedrine sources. It is possible to create neth from nmulti-
i ngredient products but it takes a higher level of chemstry
know edge.

9:02: 53 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Sgt. Birt whether it is a threat to have the
conbi ned products readily available on retail shelves.

SERGEANT BIRT stated his experience is nmeth cooks utilize cold
tablets primrily.

9: 06: 09 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS comented there was no reliable information
indicating the presence of other products would block the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2005



chem cal process of producing neth wusing nulti-ingredi ent
products.

SERGEANT BIRT agreed. He asserted SB 106 would significantly
i npact neth | abs.

9:07:30 AM
SERGEANT BI RT continued once register |ogs were made avail able
to law enforcenent it would provide trenendous hel p.

9: 09: 59 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked Sgt. Birt whether he has information from
Okl ahorma to indicate the registry | og has been hel pful.

SERGEANT BI RT said Okl ahoma has seen a significant inpact in the
reduction of meth | abs.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked the economc profile of the average neth
cooker.

SERGEANT BIRT revealed they were normally |owinconme renters,
Wi th numerous junk vehicles surrounding residences that contain
junk and clutter inside and outside the residence.

9:12: 38 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked the notivation for manufacturing neth.

SERGEANT BI RT responded addiction and noney. A $100 investnent
can quickly and easily turn into $1000.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Sgt. Birt whether he has seen |arge
quantities of Pseudo ephedrine purchased over the Internet and
shi pped into Al aska.

SERGEANT BI RT responded no.

9:15:17 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether there was a way for a shipping
conpany to know the contents of a package they are shi pping.
SERGEANT BI RT responded he did not know.

9:17: 54 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS voi ced concern there may be other supply routes to
research for future | egislation

9:19:51 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2005



SERGEANT BIRT agreed. He is aware that Pseudo ephedrine can be
purchased online but currently it is purchased in-state using
existing retail outlets.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the Gkl ahona experience since their meth
| egi sl ati on.

SERGEANT BI RT responded Oklahoman has noticed an increase in
Pseudo ephedrine sales in adjoining states.

9:.22:43 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS expressed concern SB 106 would restrict retailers
in Al aska but would | eave the whol esal e door wi de open.

9:24.:07 AM
SENATOR GUESS asked Ms. Marl ena Adans to testify.

M5. MARLENA ADAMS testified in support of SB 106. Her experience
as a meth addict caused her alnobst insurnountable pain and
suffering.

SB 106 was held in committee.
#

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 9:29:59 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2005



